
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date & Time - Thursday, 24 May 2018 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Governance and Audit Committee:

Councillors: G R Aley (Chairman), D Ashby, J R Astill (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis, 
T A Carter, P C Foyster and M D Seymour

Revised quorum 3.

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones 

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:  16 May 2018



AGENDA
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS
ARE APPROXIMATE
TIME

1. Apologies for absence. 

2. Declaration of Interests - (Where a Councillor has a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must 
declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room 
without participating in any discussion or making a 
statement on the item, except where a Councillor is 
permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation). 

3. Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 15 March 2018 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 3 - 
12)

4. Quarterly Risk Report, Q4 2017/18 - To inform the 
Committee on the current status of the Council’s 
strategic risks (report of the Executive Director Strategy 
and Governance enclosed).

(Pages 13 
- 28)

5. External Audit Progress Report and Technical Update - 
(report of KPMG enclosed).

(Pages 29 
- 38)

6. Pre-Audit 2017-18 Financial Statements, including 
Narrative Report and Annual Governance Statement - To 
present the unaudited Financial Statements 2017/18 for 
members’ consideration, prior to formal approval by the 
Executive Director Commercialisation (report of the 
Executive Director Commercialisation (Section 151 
Officer)).

(To 
Follow)

7. Annual Treasury Management Review 2017/18 - To 
consider the Annual Treasury Management Review for 
2017-18 prior to it being submitted to Council for 
approval (report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151) enclosed).

(Pages 39 
- 50)

8. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme - To 
set out the Work Programme of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (report of the Executive Manager 
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) enclosed).

(Pages 51 
- 56)

9. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 
reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency.



- 30 -

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in  
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 15 March 
2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

G R Aley (Chairman)
J R Astill (Vice-Chairman)

D Ashby
C J T H Brewis

T A Carter
P C Foyster

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors M D Seymour.  

In Attendance:  J Cornett (Director, KPMG), H Brookes (Manager, KPMG), E Hodds 
(Head of Internal Audit, Eastern Internal Audit Services), the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151), the Business Intelligence Officer, the Business 
Intelligence Officer, the Democratic Services Officer and Councillor P Coupland.

Action By
35. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were none.

36. MINUTES 

AGREED:

a) The minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee 
Meeting held on 14 December 2017 were signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.

b) The minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee 
Meeting held on 16 January 2018 were signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.

37. QUARTERLY RISK REPORT Q3 2017/18 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Strategy and Governance.

Officers stated that there were no significant changes that had 
occurred during the quarter in which the meeting took place.

It was noted that a new risk would be added to the risk report for 
the next meeting, this being the impact of the Homelessness 
Reduction Act.

Councillors asked if there were any issues with the collapse of 
companies such as Carillion, and issues at Capita. Officers 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3.



- 31 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

answered in the negative.

Members wanted to know if the homelessness legislation was 
funded by central government. Officers did not know and agreed 
that this information would be sought and members advised in 
due course.

AGREED:

That the contents of the report be noted.

(Both Business Intelligence Officers left the meeting following 
discussion of this item.)

38. CERTIFICATION OF GRANTS AND RETURNS 2016/17 

The report of the Head of Internal Audit had been considered at 
the meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee held on 14 
December 2017. During that meeting issues were raised with 
outstanding items within the report. It was agreed that certain 
information within the report would be raised at this meeting to 
identify and update upon any items which remained outstanding 
on 14 December 2017.

Officers mentioned that what was attached were previous 
recommendations which had not yet been implemented

002A – HMO Licensing Policy

It was noted that work had been carried out on these policies. It 
was mentioned that officers wanted a comparison with policies at 
Boston Borough Council. Councillor Brewis mentioned that 
Boston Borough Council was not a Housing Landlord and that he 
was concerned by the fact that the comparison was not like for 
like. He felt that, as a Housing Landlord, South Holland District 
Council should be consulting an authority which was also a 
Housing Landlord. Officers responded that this issue was mainly 
based upon Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and that 
Boston Borough Council had significant experience with these. 
Officers stated that it was hoped that the comparison would be 
completed by the end of June 2018.

Members stated that the relevant officers should be expected to 
be in attendance at the next meeting that this topic was discussed 
at.

002C – HMO non licensable properties

Page 4



- 32 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

It was stated that this issue was now closed.

002E – HMO Procedures

It was stated that this issue was now closed.

002G – HMO Website

It was stated that this issue was now closed.

004A - Car Park Income Unders and Overs

Officers noted that new ticket machines had now been procured 
and changes were underway. Members wanted to know if data 
had ever been compared with other authorities who had abolished 
car parking charges. Officers replied that there appeared to be no 
correlation between a lack of parking charges and the success of 
a town centre.

Members felt that the new ticket machines were a good step 
forward.

Some members voiced concern with the potential fraud risk with 
card reading ticket machines. Officers responded that the 
machines were procured from a reputable source. Members 
reiterated that they meant after-purchase fraud on the machines. 
Officers stated that a degree of the onus was on the individual to 
be concerned about their own fiscal security.

Officers stated that they would generate an updated timeline for 
outstanding items.

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; and

b) That officers would generate an updated timeline of 
completion for items which remained outstanding.

CM 

39. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2017/18 

Consideration was given to KPMG’s External Audit Plan 2017/18, 
which was presented to the Committee by the Audit Manager, 
KPMG, who highlighted the following issues:

 Officers laid out the approach to the Authority’s accounts 
and risks to them. It was stated that Materiality had been 
set at £1.1 million. KPMG officers stated that the reporting 

Page 5



- 33 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

threshold was agreed at £55,000. However, it was 
mentioned that KPMG worked to a lower level than that.

 Officers stated that the Authority was the holder of £176.5 
million worth of property, plant and equipment in total. It 
was mentioned that the risk to this laid in the fact that the 
valuations were only estimates.

 KPMG officers stated that the authority was in charge of 
£37.5 million worth of pensions liabilities. Again, the risk 
involved with this laid in the fact that this value was only an 
estimate.

 Other areas of audit focus- The timetable was advanced as 
a statutory issue. It was stated that the Authority was 
required to have draft accounts prepared by the end of 
May and the final accounts signed off by the end of July.

 Value for money arrangements – Risks relating to this were 
financial resilience and the robustness of medium term 
plans.

 The audit team at KPMG remained unchanged.

 Planned audit fee was £44,537

The following issues were raised:

 Councillors asked when the next revaluation of the pension 
scheme would be. It was confirmed that it would be in a 
further 2 years time.

 Councillors asked if there would be a rebalancing of the 
ratio of contributions to pensions between employers and 
employees. Officers responded that the Government had 
implemented changes to this recently.

AGREED:

That the report be noted.

(Cllr Foyster left the meeting during discussion of the above item).

40. CERTIFICATION OF GRANTS AND RETURNS 2016/17 

Consideration was given to KPMG’s Annual report on Grants and 
Returns 2016/17, which was presented to the Committee by the 
Audit Manager, KPMG. The following issues were raised:

Page 6



- 34 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

Final report of 2017/18 

 With regard to the Housing benefit subsidy, officers stated 
that there would be 100% testing for this year in relation to 
2 specific issues and 40+% testing in relation to 7 further 
issues.

 Officers stated that adjustments were made from the 100% 
testing resulting in a £305 rise in the claim.

Housing Pooling return:

 Officers advised that there was a small increase in the fee 
due to the complexity of the work.

 Members wanted to know if errors were down to human 
error and it was confirmed that this was the case.

 Members asked if changes to Universal Credit would affect 
the Council. Officers responded that it would depend upon 
circumstances, but that it was likely that the process would 
be simplified.

 Members asked what was being done to address the 
reduction in errors. Officers responded that there was no 
single remedy  that could be implemented, but that the 
main contributors were staff training and an improvement 
in processes. It was also stated that, in the past, 
performance had been gauged by how many claims had 
been put through and not the quality of processing.

 Councillors  wanted it noted how happy they were with the 
report and how good the news included was.

AGREED:

That the report be noted

41. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit for South Holland District Council which examined the 
progress made between 1 December 2017 and 28 February 2018 
in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 
2017/18. The following issues were raised:

 It was mentioned that the Place review had meant that the 

Page 7



- 35 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

Housing department had faced a large overhaul, which 
resulted in the Housing audit being an advisory review.  This 
would then inform the audit scope for this area in 2018/19. 

 It was stated that with regard to Procurement and Contract 
Management, new staff were in place and that an audit would 
be undertaken early in 2018/19.

  With regard to IT audits – It was confirmed that 2 audits were 
underway at the time of the meeting and would be presented 
in the next Progress Report on Internal Audit.

  It was confirmed that the priority one recommendations made 
in the audits of Section 106 Agreements and Asset 
Management were due to be completed by the end of June, 
Officers mentioned that they would get an update prepared for 
the end of the financial year.  In relation to the priority one 
recommendation made in the Environmental Protection audit 
this had now been completed.

Officers mentioned that the Compass Point Business Services’ 
audits were all already at or near the draft stage.

Members raised the following issues:

 Members questioned whether Section 106s could be variable. 
Officers responded that they needed to be unified.

 Members asked if tenancy agreements that expired should be 
put on new tenancies. Officers responded that this was 
expected and down to relevant officers to progress.

 Members questioned when the Authority would look at rent 
free periods? Officers responded that some new housing stock 
was  due to come onto the market and therefore the Council 
may wish to offer this on those properties to encourage 
businesses into the area. 

 Members questioned Issues to be addressed in the Assurance 
Review of Environmental Protection and wanted to know if 
permits that were invalid had been issued, officers confirmed 
that this had happened and also that work was being done to 
resolve this.

 Members questioned Appendix 3 to the report with specific 
reference to item 9 ‘Percentage of recommendations accepted 
by management’, wanting to know the background of the fact 
that the percentage of recommendations being agreed by 

CM 

CM 

Page 8



- 36 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

management was only 90% - Officers stated  that this was a 
recognition of the fact that this is not a ‘perfect world’ and this 
was a target, actual performance would be reported as part of 
the Annual Report and Opinion to be provided in June.

AGREED:

That the members note the progress to date with the Internal 
Audit Plan of work for 2017/18.

42. STRATEGIC AND ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLANS 2018/19 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which provided an overview of the stages followed prior to 
the formulation of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 to 
2020/21 and the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19.  The 
report would then serve as the work programme for the Council’s 
Internal Audit Services Contractor ; TIAA Ltd.  It would also 
provide the basis for the Annual Audit Opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of South Holland District Council’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control.

It was noted that the Key Audits were; GDPR, Procurement and 
Contract Management and Compass Point Budget Management.

It was further noted that time was being given to the relevant team 
to progress asset management recommendations, as a limited 
assurance was concluded, and that the area would be revisited in 
quarter two of 2018/19.

Regarding Food Health and Safety, members questioned whether 
roadside cafés’ were regulated. Officers responded that these 
would be looked at on a risk basis by the team and that this could 
form part of the internal audit review.

It was stated that the progress of Leisure Procurement would be 
examined, with particular attention paid to the service areas 
readiness for the new contract.

AGREED:

That the Committee notes and approves:

a) The Internal Audit Strategy for 2018/19;

b) The Strategic Internal Audit Plans 2018/19 to 2020/21; 
and

Page 9



- 37 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

c) The Annual Internal Audit Plan 2018/19.

43. AUDIT MANDATORY INQUIRIES 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director – 
Commercialisation (S151) which confirmed the response to the 
External Audit Mandatory Inquiries.

Members were unhappy the wording in the comments section of 
the report relating to the second fraud inquiry in the report 
sounded wrong. Officers agreed to make changes and 
improvements to the wording.

AGREED:

To approve the response to the External Audit Mandatory 
Inquiries.

ES 

44. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – 
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) which set out the Work 
Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee.

The schedule of meetings for 2018/19 was now available, and 
dates for Governance and Audit meetings had been added to the 
Work Programme.  Regular items had been transferred from the 
2017/18 municipal year to the appropriate meeting dates for the 
new municipal year.  Contributors were requested to confirm that 
the reports, and the meeting dates on which they were to be 
reported, were correct.

DECISION

That the report be noted

45. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT. 

Members asked for clarification on the viability of investment in 
Quatari banks.  Officers responded that any investments were in 
line with the Authority’s relevant policies. Due to the political 
sensitivity of investing in such governments, there were currently 
no investments in Quatari banks.

It was noted that the Authority was already investing in local 
authorities and returns were good.

Page 10



- 38 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
15 March 2018

Members asked, with regard to Welland Homes, if money was 
being invested into Welland Homes housing. Officers responded 
that there were large amounts of investment in this area. It was 
noted that investment income was substantially better than it was 
in the previous year.. 

(The meeting ended at 7.48 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Maxine O’Mahony - Executive Director of Strategy and Governance

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 24th May 2018

Author: Charlotte Paine – Senior Business Intelligence Officer

Subject: Quarterly Risk Report, Q4 2017/18

Purpose: To inform the Committee on the current status of the Councils’ strategic 
risks

Recommendation: 

1)  That the contents of the report are noted.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1. The last risk report to the Governance and Audit Committee was in March 2018 for Q3.  
Since then, there have been a small number of changes to the strategic risk register which 
are highlighted in this report.  

1.2 This report is generated using the Pentana (formerly Covalent) system and includes 
updates on strategic risks for quarter 4, 2017/18.

1.3 Strategic risks are visible on the Corporate Dashboard which is available to the Executive 
Management Team (EMT) and risks are reviewed by EMT quarterly.  In addition, risks are 
reviewed monthly at the officer-led Performance, Risk & Audit Board chaired by the 
Executive Director of Strategy and Governance.

1.4. Strategic risks have been reviewed and updated with the responsible members of EMT.  
These cover the over-arching risks that may affect the strategic direction of the council, 
rather than risks linked to business continuity or those that affect discreet service areas. 
The strategic risk register includes 17 strategic risks (see Appendix A). 

1.5 Strategic risks typically affect the whole of the organisation and not just one or more parts 
of it. Strategic risks can potentially involve very high stakes and often affect the ability of the 
organisation to survive, e.g. impact on the ability of the Council to achieve its corporate plan 
objectives and purpose. 

1.6 The Council’s risk scoring mechanism is based on a 5x5 matrix, and is comparable with 
best practice in other, similar organisations.  The risk matrix provides a comprehensive 
assessment and understanding of risk likelihood and impact. The matrix results in a 
numerical score which combines the impact of the risk occurring with the likelihood of it 
happening.

1.7 Risks fall into High, Medium or Low categories depending on their rating.

Page 13

Agenda Item 4.



1.8 Risks are tracked below in a heat map to represent the number of strategic risks currently 
reported at each score 

1.9 There is currently one risk in the high risk category. This relates to the critical breach of ICT 
which has been increased following the National Cyber Security Centre (NCSS) intelligence 
regarding possible increased threat from Russian government-supported malicious cyber 
activity. The ICT department are aware of the threat and the reviewing the mitigations 
suggested by the NCSS as well as continuing with the ongoing work to ensure the safety of 
our computer networks.

1.10 There are currently thirteen risks which fall into the medium category. Of these risks, most 
remain at the same score as last quarter with 1 risk increasing in score. There have been 3 
new risks added since Q3, there are; Impact of Homelessness Reduction Act, Contracts 
Monitoring and Staff Recruitment and Retention within the Shared Services Arrangement.

The risk that increased in the quarter is the impact of business rate appeals. This is due to 
current ongoing legal action undertaken by the NHS who are appealing for business rate 
reductions to be applied which, if successful, could have an impact throughout the Country 
and has therefore increased the likelihood on the SHDC risk. More detail will be provided of 
the decision when available.

The Homelessness Reduction Act risk has been added following the introduction of new 
legislation for the housing service. This is to ensure that we monitor the impact of the new 
statutory requirements and consider if any further mitigations are required. Currently the 
impact seen has been an increase in the time spent with those presenting as homeless 
rather than an increase in the number of presentations. This is being monitored to ensure 
the correct advice and level of service is being provided.

Contracts Monitoring is a strategic risk in the light of the Carillion collapse to provide 
assurance that we are monitoring the stability of our contracts. The contracts and 
procurement team are working closely with services to ensure the most accurate contracts 

High
Medium
Low

Page 14



register is available which supports the monitoring of all contracts over £5,000. Key 
strategic contracts are part of wider government transparency governance and where any 
concerns regarding profits or shares are highlighted, this information is made available, and 
this is monitored by the contracts and procurement team.

Staff retention within the Shared Services Arrangement is a risk that is being monitored to 
see whether there is a particular risk around retention of staff who are part of the Breckland 
and South Holland Shared Management model. There were recently some key strategic 
roles that were proving difficult to recruit to, however, there have now been 2 appointments 
made to the Executive Management Team from internal candidates. This shows the level 
of talent within our own pool of employees and supports a key objective regarding internal 
talent management.

1.11 There are 2 risks currently reported in the low category are these are scored as they were 
in the previous quarter. 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 That the contents of the report are noted.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 Not applicable

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 That the Committee is made aware of the Council’s strategic risks and understands that 
they are being managed and mitigated effectively.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Corporate Priorities

5.1.1 The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the delivery of the Council’s 
corporate priorities.

5.2 Financial

5.2.1 The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the Council’s budgets and 
financial management.

5.3 Risk Management

5.3.1 The report provides detail on the Council’s strategic risks.

5.4 Staffing

5.4.1 The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the delivery of the 
           Council’s corporate priorities.

Page 15



6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards or communities are affected

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 EMT – Executive Management Team

7.2 NCSS - National Cyber Security Centre 

7.3 ICT – Information Communication Technology

Background papers:- None
Lead Contact Officer

Name and Post: Charlotte Paine – Senior Business Intelligence Officer 
Telephone Number: 07870 835233
Email: charlotte.paine@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A South Holland District Council Strategic Risk Register (Q4 
2017/18)

Page 16



APPENDIX A

SHDC Strategic Risk Report inc Targets

Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

Critical 
breach of 
ICT security

Attacks are 
happening with 
increasing 
frequency at 
present. Ransom 
and theft specialists 
are targeting 
banking details and 
personal 
information, as with 
all other 
government 
systems and private 
companies 

25

There is a 
comprehensive 
suite of protection 
measures in place 
including email 
filtering, web 
filtering, antivirus 
and windows 
updates which 
help to protect 
from viruses

15 5 3

Risk upgraded in the 
short term due to 
intelligence coming 
from the National 
Cyber Security Centre 
regarding increased 
threat from Russia.

However, the ICT team 
continue with activities 
to aid in the prevention 
of critical breaches 
such as patching of 
servers and 
applications, patching 
of Wi-Fi infrastructure 
in line with latest 
threats and 
recommendations, 
patching of the 
Firewalls and Proxy 
servers, user guidance 
and training on 
security best practice, 
compliance to PSN 
standards and 
certificate obtained 

17 Apr 
2018 4 2

P
age 17



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

and continued work 
with DPO to reduce 
exposure from GDPR 
requirements.

Medium 
Term 
Financial 
Plan Not 
Delivered

The Medium Term 
Financial Plan 
includes a balanced 
position which is 
dependent on 
delivery of further 
savings

12

There are a 
number of controls 
in place to track 
delivery including 
transformation 
board, 
Performance, Risk 
& Audit Board & 
Finance Board. 
PI's are tracking 
variance from plan

12 4 3

Mitigation continues 
with a number of 
boards tracking 
progress and 
monitoring delivery of 
the financial plan

09 May 
2018 3 2

Uncertainty 
over future 
government 
funding 
settlement

Government funding 
reductions due to a 
weakening of the 
economy may be 
experienced during 
the period of the 
MTFP 

12

4yr MTFP sets out 
programme to be 
free of reliance on 
RSG by 2019. 
Setting investment 
funds, commercial 
property and 
growth to ensure 
continued income.
Star chamber 
exercises and 
constant forward 
looking reviews will 
be undertaken.

12 4 3

Risk remains the same 
as we continue to work 
towards being free of 
reliance of the RSG by 
2019

09 May 
2018 2 2

P
age 18



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

Impact of 
business 
rate appeals

Business rate 
retention policy 
changes leave the 
council exposed to 
risks on collection 
and baseline 
income. 

20

Financial provision 
has been made to 
cover the risk of 
current appeals, 
collection rates 
and growth

12 3 4

An increase in the 
likelihood is reported 
this quarter following 
the appeal that has 
been lodged by NHS 
services who want to 
see a reduction in the 
amount of business 
rates they have to pay. 
The impact of this will 
be evaluated once the 
decision has been 
made.

09 May 
2018 2 2

Failure to 
maximise 
trading 
opportunitie
s

Failure to maximise 
trading opportunities 
could result in lack 
of commercial 
exploitation of 
assets or income 
from trading arms 

9

Governance is in 
place for MTFP 
through 
transformation 
board, finance 
board and 
Performance Risk 
and Audit Board 
which monitor the 
work towards 
maximising trading
opportunities

12 4 3

Risk score is the same 
as the previous quarter 
with the Environmental 
Health trading arm 
continuing to deliver its 
business model and 
looking to achieve its 
projected income

09 May 
2018 2 2

Staff 
recruitment 
and 
retention at 
all levels 
within the 
organisation

Staff recruitment 
and retention issues 
could undermine the 
effectiveness of the 
organisations 
though loss of 
experience and 
knowledge 

15

The mitigation for 
key senior posts 
that are vacant or 
serving their notice 
period will be to 
start recruitment 
and find suitable 
interim cover. 

12 3 4

At the end of Quarter 
4, staff turnover was 
higher than Q3 but 
lower than Q2 when 
turnover was 
particularly high during 
the Place Review. In 
the majority of work 
areas, the posts which 

12 Apr 
2018 2 2

P
age 19



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

have been advertised 
have been filled with 
the exception of some 
key specialist posts 
which at the time of 
writing are currently 
being advertised.  

General Data 
Protection 
Regulation 
Implementati
on

With the 
implementation of 
the General Data 
Protection 
Regulation, which 
replaces the Data 
Protection Action of 
1998, there is a risk 
that the council will 
not manage its data 
appropriately and in 
line with the new 
regulations.

16

Monthly meetings 
of the statutory 
information group 
have highlighted 
areas which need 
to be addressed 
and training was 
delivered in 
September for 
managers and 
proposed service 
Data Protection 
leads.

12 4 3

Mitigation measures 
include monthly SIG 
meetings, appointment 
of the Information 
Governance Officer 
(from 14 May) and we 
are also investigating 
extending our 
insurance. Work on 
our Information Assets 
Register is largely 
complete and a 
template privacy notice 
is about to be rolled 
out to Data Champions 
to be used to notify 
data subjects of how 
their data is being. E-
Learning has now 
been rolled out to all 
staff.

09 May 
2018 2 2

P
age 20



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

Impact of 
Homelessne
ss 
Reduction 
Act

The implementation 
of the new act 
places additional 
burdens on SHDC 
which may mean a 
reduced ability 
within the service to 
adhere to the act 
due to an 
unpredictable 
increase of persons 
approaching the 
housing options 
service. Capacity 
may be impacted by 
increased volumes 
of homeless 
applications, 
increased time 
needed to manage 
each case in order 
to fulfil the 
requirements of the 
new legislation and 
risk that the 
expansion of the 
duty could lead to a 
serious shortfall in 
available temporary 
housing options to 
accommodate 
homeless 
individuals and 
families 

12

•         
Implementation of 
specialist Jigsaw 
Software to case 
manage under 
provisions of HRA 
2017 
•         Increase in 
establishment of 
Housing Options 
Officer in SHDC as 
part of Place 
Review 
•         Additional 
experienced 
temporary staff 
from February 
2018 to triage 
cases 
•         Increase of 
admin support to 
Housing Options 
Team to better 
utilise specialist 
staff to focus on 
complex cases 
•         Training in 
new duties to be 
ongoing (initial 
joint SHDC/BDC 
training held in 
January 2018) 
•         Utilisation of 
£62k New Burdens 

12 3 4

Early working of the 
new duties imposed by 
the Act is showing the 
build-up of a backlog. 
Steps were taken in 
the planning but at 6 
weeks into the Act 
these are being 
revised with potential 
resource implications 
to mitigate the risk

02 May 
2018 3 2

P
age 21



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

funding 
•         
Identification of 
options within 
SHDC stock 
•         
Identification of 
private sector 
options within both 
districts 
•         Work with 
partners to open 
other potential 
options 

Impact of 
County 
Council 
Budget 
Reductions

Impact of County 
Council Budget 
Reductions. This 
will potentially 
impact on resident 
wellbeing. 

9

Ensure that Place 
directorate are 
involved early in 
conversations to 
represent the 
council and its 
residents

9 3 3

County budgets 
continue to be under 
severe pressure, we 
continue to monitor 
this

09 May 
2018 2 2

Failure to 
deliver 
financial & 
non-
financial 
outcomes of 
the 
approved 
Welland 
Homes 
business 

Failure to deliver 
financial & non-
financial outcomes 
of the approved 
business plan has 
implication in areas 
which include Legal, 
reputational and 
Financial. Risk also 
refers to capacity 
and expertise in the 

8

Mitigations as 
follows;
• Revised 
governance 
including 
strengthened 
terms of reference. 
• Improved 
communication on 
Council policies to 
the WH Board. 

9 3 3

No change to score for 
this quarter as we 
continue to deliver the 
business plan. The 
properties currently 
rented have received 
100% of rent due to 
date.

09 May 
2018 2 2

P
age 22



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

plan organisation to 
deliver the housing 
development 
requirement for both 
the HRA and 
Welland Homes.

• Increased 
operational 
capability and 
capacity within 
Council to support 
future programmes 
and WH Board of 
Directors. 
• Permanent 
Housing 
Development 
programme 
manager 
• Positive Audit 
• Established 
methodology for 
assessing 
schemes 

Contracts 
Monitoring

This risk covers the 
councils monitoring 
of contracts with 
external partners to 
ensure 
arrangements are 
financially secure 
and performing

16

Regular monitoring 
of contracts.
Regular 
communication 
with external 
partners and 
stakeholders
Keep up to date 
with external 
changes with 
partners

9 3 3

Through spend 
analysis with finance 
the contracts team are 
ensuring the contracts 
register is fully 
maintained to provide 
assurance. Increased 
due diligence at the 
start of contracts also 
ensures better contract 
monitoring

2 3

P
age 23



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

CPBS 
Failure to 
deliver core 
services

CPBS Failure to 
deliver core 
services - 
HR/IT/Finance/Reve
nues & Benefits 

12

Number of 
Governance 
processes in place 
including 
monitoring of 
performance in 
performance, risk 
and audit baord. 
CPBS also has its 
own board with 
governance.

8 4 2

Offers have now been 
made to the 2 vacant 
roles within Finance.  
Pre-employment 
checks are being 
carried out before 
confirming a start date. 
Update 23 April 2018 - 
1 vacancy mentioned 
above, Senior Finance 
BP, is again vacant - 
currently out to advert 
with an interim 
currently filling the post 

23 Apr 
2018 2 2

Publication 
of gender 
pay gap 
under 
transparenc
y legislation

The evolution of 
Transparency 
legislation will mean 
a requirement to 
publish the gap 
between male and 
female earnings 
within pay bandings. 
This could lead to 
increased scrutiny 
from the unions 
which may trigger a 
Unison audit. The 
collateral effect of 
the risk coming to 
fruition would be 
around reputational 
damage and legal 
ramifications of 
potentially 

12

The mitigation for 
this is to 
proactively 
establish i) if there 
is a gender based 
pay gap within job 
roles and ii) to 
identify funding to 
cover any liability 
in this area should 
liability be 
identified. The 
Council advocates 
equitable and fair 
treatment of its 
employees and 
would not wish to 
perpetuate any 
such discrepancy. 

6 2 3

Submission completed 
- agreed by Full 
Council, published on 
the SHDC website and 
figures submitted on 
Gov. website

12 Apr 
2018 2 2

P
age 24



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

backdated claims 
from workers. 

Failure to 
deliver the 
council's 
Corporate 
Priorities

Would lead to 
missed targets and 
failure to deliver 
objectives and may 
result in the Council 
suffering 
reputational 
damage and a 
failure to deliver 
priorities to 
residents. 

4

Corporate Delivery 
Plan sets out how 
to acheive 
corporate plan and 
this is under 
pinned by 
individual service 
plans and these 
are monitored at 
Perfromance, Risk 
& Audit Board 
monthly

4 2 2

Risk remains 
unchanged as the 
Corporate 
improvement and 
performance team 
continue to monitor 
and work with staff 
towards achieving the 
corporate priorities. 
The annual refresh of 
the Corporate Plan 
and associated service 
level delivery plans 
has now been 
completed and the 
performance 
framework refresh to 
ensure performance 
monitored in line with 
corporate objectives

09 May 
2018 2 2

Failure to 
deliver Local 
Plan and its 
Delivery 
Plan

Failure to deliver 
Local Plan and its 
Delivery Plan - 
reputational and 
financial risk due to 
possible Secretary 
of State 
intervention. There 
is also a new risk 
emerging due to 
New Homes Bonus. 

8
Dedicated senior 
officer and EMT 
support to deliver 
the local plan

4 4 1

The Local Plan was 
submitted for 
Examination in 
summer 2017. The 
oral hearings that have 
been taking place 
since October 2017 
have now concluded 
and the next step is to 
undertake a period of 6 
weeks public 
consultation on the 

03 May 
2018 4 3

P
age 25



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

modifications to the 
plan put forward during 
the hearings. Once this 
period of consultation 
is complete, the 
Inspector will be able 
to finalise the report 
into the soundness of 
the Plan. Therefore, 
whilst the examination 
of the plan is still 
ongoing albeit 
significantly advanced, 
it remains appropriate 
to leave the impact 
and likelihood scores 
unchanged at this 
time.

 

Failure to 
effectively 
implement 
corporate 
business 
continuity 
plan

Failure could lead to 
an impact on 
delivery of services, 
loss of IT systems, 
ineffective 
communication or a 
failure to provide 
suitable premises 

4

Working jointly 
with County to 
have business 
continuity post. 
Each team has a 
plan reviewed 
annually

3 3 1
Recruitment has been 
successful with the 
new person in post

09 May 
2018 3 1

P
age 26



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

Staff 
recruitment 
and 
retention 
within the 
shared 
services 
arrangement

This risk focuses on 
the recruitment and 
retention of staff 
within the shared 
management 
arrangement 
between Breckland 
and South Holland

12

A number of 
mitigations are 
being considered 
including - 
methods and 
channels of 
recruitment. 
Review and 
reshape our 
rewards packages. 
Understand the 
profile of the 
organisation. 
Develop 
organisational 
values and culture.        
Support new 
starters and 
flexible working.         
Development and 
career planning 
and      flexible 
retirement options

9 3 3

There has been 
successful recruitment 
of 2 Executive 
Managers from internal 
candidates

09 May 
2018 2 1

 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



External Audit: Progress 
Report and Technical 
Update

South Holland District Council

Governance and Audit Committee – May 2018

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 5.



2

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Contents

The contacts at KPMG 
in connection with this 
report are:

John Cornett
Director

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0116 256 6064
john.cornett@kpmg.co.uk

Helen Brookes
Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0115 945 4476
helen.brookes@kpmg.co.uk

Jon Machej

Assistant Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0115 935 3430
jon.machej@kpmg.co.uk

Page

Report sections

External audit progress report 3

Appendix

1. Technical Update 4

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual capacities, or to 
third parties. Public Sector Audit Appointments issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies summarising where the responsibilities of auditors 
begin and end and what is expected from audited bodies. We draw your attention to this document which is available on Public Sector Audit Appointment’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with 
the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact John Cornett, 
the engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact the national lead partner for all of KPMG’s work under 
our contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers (on 0207 694 8981, or by email to andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk). After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how 
your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 020 7072 7445 or by writing to Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3H.

This report provides the Governance and Audit Committee with an overview on progress in delivering our responsibilities as 
your external auditors.

The report also highlights some of the recent communications and other publications on the main technical issues which are 
currently having an impact in local government. 

If you require any additional information regarding the issues included within this report, please contact a member of the audit
team.

P
age 30



3

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

This document 
provides the 
Governance and 
Audit Committee 
with a high level 
overview on 
progress in 
delivering our 
responsibilities as 
your external 
auditors.

At Appendix 1 we 
have provided a 
technical update on 
relevant reports and 
publications by 
National Audit 
Office, CIPFA and 
other bodies. 

External audit progress report – May 2018
Local Government External Audit

Commentary

2017/18 
Audit

We presented the 2017/18 audit plan for the external audit of the Authority to the March 2018 Governance and Audit Committee. We have 
continued to liaise with management on the significant financial and operational issues at the Authority.

We carried out the interim audit in April 2018. The work included:

• Updating our risk assessments, including those covering accounting estimates, fraud, IT, service organisations and other aspects of the 
general control environment.

• Understanding the processes (systems) for the identified significant accounts, and testing the operation of the controls within those 
processes. 

• Testing the journals and financial reporting controls.

• Reviewing the arrangements which are relevant to the VFM conclusion.

There is only one issue to report to the Committee as a result of this work. This relates to the externally hosted version of iTrent, the payroll 
system provided by Midland HR. Midland HR have full access to the system and the Authority and we, as auditors, need to gain assurance 
that this privileged access does not present a risk. Midland HR can provide a 3rd party assurance report (ISAE3402), and we would 
recommend that the Authority, along with the other parties to the contract, commissions this report. In the absence of this, we would need to 
undertake further work to gain assurance over the access rights to the system.

Our work over the coming quarter will include: 

• ongoing liaison with finance staff and Internal Audit and further meetings with senior officers as part of the audit process to better 
understand the current and longer term issues that the council is addressing;

• confirming the working paper requirements for the final accounts audit, and discussing the ‘Prepared by Client’ schedule;

• starting our final accounts audit which is planned for the 18th June 2018; and 

• revisiting our VFM conclusion risk assessment and forming our VFM conclusion for 2017/18.

The results of our audit will be reported to the July 2018 Governance and Audit Committee.  

Technical 
Update 

At Appendix 1 we have provided a technical update on a small number of relevant reports and publications by the National Audit Office, 
CIPFA and other bodies which have been issued in recent months. 

P
age 31



4

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendix 1 - Technical update – NAO publications
Local Government External Audit

Area Comments

Financial 
sustainability of 
local authorities in 
2018

This report reviews developments in the sector and examines whether The Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (the Department) along with 
other departments with responsibility for local services, understands the impact of funding reductions on the financial and service sustainability of local authorities. 
The NAO reported on the financial sustainability of local authorities in 2013 and 2014. This report updates and builds on that work and draws out the following main 
conclusions for the Department and Wider Government:. 

The Department

The NAO concluded that the sector has done well to manage substantial funding reductions since 2010-11, but financial pressure has increased:

• Services other than adult social care are continuing to face reducing funding despite anticipated increases in council tax. Local authorities face a range of new 
demand and cost pressures while their statutory obligations have not been reduced. Non-social-care budgets have already been reduced substantially, so many 
authorities have less room for manoeuvre in finding further savings. The scope for local discretion in service provision is also eroding even as local authorities 
strive to generate alternative income streams. 

• The current pattern of growing overspends on services and dwindling reserves exhibited by an increasing number of authorities is not sustainable over the 
medium term. The financial future for many authorities is less certain than in 2014. The financial uncertainty created by delayed reform to the local government 
financial system risks longer-term value for money.

• The Department’s performance had improved since the NAO’s last study. However, conditions in the sector have worsened and the Department must continue 
to strengthen its oversight and assurance mechanisms to protect against risks to value for money from financial failure in the sector. It must also set out at the 
earliest opportunity a long-term financial plan for the sector that includes sufficient funding to address specific service pressures and secure the sector’s future 
financial sustainability.

Wider government

The NAO points out that the Department’s capacity to secure the sector’s financial sustainability in the context of limited resources is shaped by the priorities and 
agendas of other departments. The NAO concludes that the Department’s improvements in understanding and oversight are necessary but not enough. Equally, 
because responsibility for services is dispersed across departments, each department has its own narrow view of performance within its own service 
responsibilities. There is no single central understanding of service delivery as a whole or of the interactions between service areas. The NAO points out that to 
date, the current spending review period has been characterised by one-off and short-term funding fixes. Where these fixes come with restrictions and conditions, 
this poses a risk of slowly centralising decision-making. This increasingly crisis-driven approach to managing local authority finances also risks value for money.

NAO states that the current trajectory for local government is towards a narrow core offer increasingly centred on social care. This is the default outcome of 
sustained increases in demand for social care and of tightening resources. The implications for value for money to government from the resulting re-shaping of 
local government need to be considered alongside purely departmental interests. Departments need to build a consensus about the role and significance of local 
government as a whole in the context of the current funding climate, rather than engaging with authorities solely to deliver their individual service responsibilities.
A copy of the report  and other related publications can be found on the NAO website at https://www.nao.org.uk/report/financial-sustainability-of-local-authorities-
2018/

P
age 32



5

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendix 1 - Technical update – NAO publications
Local Government External Audit

Area Comments

Converting 
Maintained Schools 
to Academies 
(February 2018)

NAO assessed the Department’s approach and the extent of academy conversion; the robustness, cost and speed of the conversion process; and the availability of 
sponsors and multi-academy trusts to support schools to convert to academies. The report states that: 

• by January 2018 the Department had converted nearly 7,000 maintained schools to academies, at an estimated cost of £745 million since 2010-11. Most of the 
academies had been performing well as maintained schools but it had taken longer than intended to convert a sizeable proportion of underperforming schools 
that it considers will benefit most from academy status. More recently the Department has started to be more rigorous in its scrutiny of applicants’ financial 
sustainability and governance.

• Challenges are likely to increase in the future. The Department had not explicitly set out its current policy, but it was unclear how feasible it would be for it to 
continue to convert large numbers of schools. Most schools that are still maintained by local authorities are primary schools. These include small, sometimes 
remote, schools that tend to be less easy to integrate into multi-academy trusts. 

• There is substantial variation across the country, in the relative proportions of maintained schools and academies and in the availability and capacity of 
sponsors to support schools most in need. This complicated position means that it is incumbent on the Department to clarify its policy and make sure that the 
school system is coherent with all of its parts working effectively together. This will be crucial to secure value for money and provide children with access to 
good end-to-end schooling

A copy of the report can be found on the NAO website at https://www.nao.org.uk/report/converting-maintained-schools-to-academies/

The Adult Social 
Care Workforce in 
England (February 
2018)

In this report the NAO concludes that the Department of Health and Social Care is not doing enough to support a sustainable social care workforce. 
• There is widespread agreement that workers feel undervalued and there are limited opportunities for career progression, particularly compared with similar roles 

in health. The turnover rate of care staff has been increasing since 2012-13 and in 2016-17 reached 27.8%. The vacancy rate in 2016-17 for jobs across social 
care was 6.6%, which was well above the national average of 2.5%-2.7%. Demographic trends suggest that demand for care will continue to increase and 
people’s care needs will continue to become more complex. The Department estimates that the workforce will need to grow by 2.6% every year until 2035.

• The social care market is operating in challenging circumstances. Care providers struggle to recruit and retain workers and are incurring additional costs as a 
result. Local authorities spent 5.3% less on care in 2016-17 compared with 2010-11, and spending is to reduce further over the next two years. Uncertainty over 
funding is limiting local authorities’ ability to plan spending on care. The Department cannot demonstrate that the sector is sustainably funded, which impacts 
workforce planning. Around 65% of independent providers’ income comes from local authority-arranged care. Most local authorities are paying fees below the 
recommended minimum price for care, putting providers in financial difficulties. There is a risk providers will not continue to invest in areas where there are high 
proportions of people receiving local authority funded care.

• The Department has no national strategy to address this workforce challenge and key commitments it has made to help make the sector more attractive, 
through enhanced training and career development, have not been followed through. The NAO found no evidence that the Department is overseeing workforce 
planning by local authorities and local health and care partnerships, which commission care. 

The NAO has recommended that the Department produces a robust national workforce strategy with the support of the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government and that it encourages local and regional bodies to align their own plans to it. The Department also needs to invest more to enable commissioners to 
set appropriate fees for providers, so they can pay staff adequately and afford to offer career development and training opportunities.

A copy of the report can be found on the NAO website at https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/

P
age 33



6

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendix 1 - Technical update – NAO publications
Local Government External Audit

Area Comments

Sustainability and 
transformation in 
the NHS

and

Reducing 
Emergency 
Admissions

Sustainability and transformation in the NHS (January 2018)

The NAO found that additional funding (the £1.8 billion Sustainability and Transformation Fund in 2016-17)  aimed at helping the NHS get on a financially 
sustainable footing (with significantly less funding growth planned from 2017-18 onwards) has instead been spent on coping with existing pressures. The Fund has 
helped the NHS improve its financial position from a £1,848 million deficit in 2015-16 to a £111 million surplus in 2016-17. The NHS was struggling though to 
manage increased activity and demand within its budget and has not met NHS access targets. 

• measures taken to rebalance its finances have restricted money available for longer-term transformation, which is essential for the NHS to meet demand, drive 
efficiencies and improve the service. The NHS transferred £1.2 billion of its £5.8 billion budget for capital projects to fund the day-to-day activities of NHS 
bodies.

• Many trusts are receiving large levels of in-year cash injections, most of which are loans from the Department, which have worsened rather than improved their 
financial performance. Extra cash support increased from £2.4 billion in 2015-16 to £3.1 billion in 2016-17.

• CCGs and trusts are reliant on one-off measures, rather than recurrent savings that are realised each year. Between 2014-15 and 2016-17 the percentage of 
savings that were non-recurrent increased from 14% to 17% for commissioners, and from 14% to 22% for trusts. This poses a significant risk to the financial 
sustainability of the NHS in the future.

The NAO concluded that progress had been made in setting up 44 new partnership arrangements across health and local government, for a more strategic 
approach to meeting the demand for health services within the resources available. Partnerships’ effectiveness varies and their tight financial positions make it 
difficult for them to shift focus from short-term day-to-day pressures to delivering transformation of services.

NAO made a number of recommendations to the Department, NHS England and NHS Improvement, which includes moving further and faster towards aligning 
nationwide incentives, regulation and processes, as well as reassessing how best to allocate the sustainability and transformation funding.

Reducing Emergency Admissions (March 2018)

This report examines progress that the Department, NHS England, NHS Improvement and other stakeholders are making in reducing the impact of emergency 
admissions on acute hospitals. The report looks at action across acute, primary, community and social care systems rather than focusing on A&E departments 
alone. It builds on the NAO’s 2013 report on Emergency admissions to hospital: managing the demand and our 2016 report on Discharging older patients from 
hospital, which also examined the pressures on the whole health and social care system.

The NAO concluded that the impact on hospitals of rising emergency admissions poses a serious challenge to both the service and financial position of the NHS. 
Over the last four years, the NHS has done well to reduce this impact despite admitting more people as emergency admissions, largely by reducing length of stay 
and growing daycase treatment. However, it cannot know if its approach is achieving enduring results until it understands whether reported increases in 
readmissions are a sign that some people admitted as an emergency are being discharged too soon. The NHS also still has too many avoidable admissions and 
too much unexplained variation. A lot of effort is being made and progress can be seen in some areas, but the challenge of managing emergency admissions is far 
from being under control.
Copies of the reports can be found at https://www.nao.org.uk/report/sustainability-and-transformation-in-the-nhs/ and https://www.nao.org.uk/report/reducing-
emergency-admissions/

P
age 34



7

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendix 1 - Technical update – NAO publications
Local Government External Audit

Area Comments

Round-up for 
Governance and 
Audit 
Committees

This interactive round-up of NAO publications is intended to help Audit Committees, Boards and other users by outlining the latest NAO 
resources for governance and oversight, risk management and strategic management issues. It also sets out how to keep in touch with NAO 
insight on specific issues and/or sectors. It is published each autumn and spring, covering NAO publications over the previous six months.

The March 2018 edition can be found at the following link:

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/round-up-for-audit-committees/

The publication includes useful articles on:

• Cyber Security

• Managing Conflicts of Interest

• Contract and Programme Management, including insights and examples from NAO work relating to: managing contracted-out service 
delivery; commercial capability; and managing markets.

P
age 35



8

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendix 1 - Technical update – CIPFA publications
Local Government External Audit

Area Comments

CIPFA Statement on 
Northamptonshire
County Council being 
the subject of a Section 
114 Notice

e 

In February 2018 the Council’s S151 officer issued a ‘section 114 notice’ (under the Local Government Finance Act 1988) banning all 
new expenditure at Northamptonshire County Council, with the exception of statutory services for protecting vulnerable people. 
Further to this an advisory notice (under Section 29 of the Audit and Accountability Act 2014) was issued to the Council by its 
external auditor which highlighted concerns about the authority’s proposed budget and what they claim was an over-reliance on the 
use of capital receipts.

CIPFA’s statement says that the news that Northamptonshire County Council is the subject of a Section 114 Notice is not surprising 
for three reasons.

First, the local government sector is under enormous strain following significant resource reductions since 2010. CIPFA has advised 
both the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) and the LGA that we are likely to see other councils 
reach this point in the next two to three years if the government does not provide a more sustainable framework for local government 
finances.

Secondly, in the specific case of Northamptonshire, it is a council that has traditionally received tight resources and has generally 
been a low-cost authority. An adverse OFSTED report placed the corporate position under strain. At the same time the number of 
elderly people has risen, creating budget pressures.

Thirdly, the county’s transformation programme, though innovative, has not yielded sufficient savings and the council depleted its 
reserves in an unwise manner without alternative compensatory savings of the order needed. However, we have seen other councils 
suffering the same general and specific strains manage their budgets more effectively. With Northampton, it appears to have now 
deteriorated too far for the council to be able to manage its finances and government intervention is likely to be needed to set a path 
for the future.

CIPFA’s statement can be found at the following link: 

http://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/sustainability-of-the-nhs-is-reliant-on-upfront-investment,-robust-
governance-and-awareness-of-risk

In 2016 CIPFA issued a helpful briefing which looks at what it means to have a balanced budget, what factors have a negative impact 
on the finances, the impact of a spending freeze and what happens if a Section 114 notice is implemented. The briefing can be found 
at: 

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/balancing-local-authority-budgets-and-section-114-notices

P
age 36



9

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendix 1 - Technical update – CIPFA and MHCLG publications
Local Government External Audit

Area Comments

CIPFA Bulletin 01 
Closure of the 2017/18 
Financial Statements

This bulletin covers the closure of accounts for the 2017/18 year and provides further guidance and clarification to complement the 
2017/18 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: Guidance Notes for Practitioners (Code Guidance
Notes). It addresses, where relevant, frequently asked questions and other issues that have arisen since the publication of the 
2017/18 Code Guidance Notes.

The Bulletin covers:
• Changes to the 2017/18 accounts closure timetable
• Guidance relating to:

• Accounting for the Apprenticeship Levy
• Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
• The item 8 debit/credit determination (housing authorities only)
• ‘Going Concern’ basis of accounts
• Other changes introduced by the 2017/18 Code

The Bulletin also provides a briefing on the anticipated changes to the 2018/19 Code and future years’ Codes.  

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/cipfa-bulletins/cipfa-bulletin-01-closure-201718

Publication of Statutory 
Guidance for Local 
Authority Investments 
and the Minimum 
Revenue Provision

The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) published in February 2018 its summary of responses to the 
November 2017 consultation, alongside the updated Codes. The MRP guidance applies for accounting periods starting on or after 1 
April 2019, with the exception of paragraphs 27-29 of this guidance “Changing methods for calculating MRP”, which apply from 
accounting periods starting on or after 1 April 2018. The Investment guidance applies from accounting periods starting on or after 1 
April 2018.

The new guidance can be found at the following link:

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposed-changes-to-the-prudential-framework-of-capital-finance

P
age 37



Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights 
reserved.
The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.
The information contained herein is of a general nature and is not intended to address the circumstances of any 
particular individual or entity. Although we endeavor to provide accurate and timely information, there can be no 
guarantee that such information is accurate as of the date it is received or that it will continue to be accurate in 
the future. No one should act on such information without appropriate professional advice after a thorough 
examination of the particular situation.

kpmg.com/socialmedia kpmg.com/app

P
age 38



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director Commercialisation (S151), Christine Marshall

To: Governance and Audit Committee 24 May 2018
Council 11 July 2018

Author: Sean Howsam – Finance Manager – Treasury (CPBS)

Subject: Annual Treasury Management Review 2017/18

Purpose: To consider the Annual Treasury Management Review for 2017-18 prior to it 
being submitted to Council for approval.

Recommendation(s): 

1)    That the Governance and Audit Committee scrutinise the Annual Treasury Management 
Review 2017/18 and make any comments for consideration by Council when they consider 
this document for approval at their meeting on 11 July 2018. 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 
produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2017/18. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).

During 2017/18 the following reports have been submitted: 

 an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 22/02/2017);
 a mid year (minimum) treasury update report (submitted to Governance and Audit 

14/12/2017);
 An annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to 

the strategy (this report).

1.2 The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and scrutiny 
of treasury management policy and activities.  This report is therefore important in that 
respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights 
compliance with the Council’s policies previously approved by members.

1.3 This Council also confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the Code to 
give prior scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports by the Audit and 
Governance Committee.  Member training on treasury management issues was 
undertaken during 2017/18 on 15/03/2018 in order to support the members’ scrutiny role.

1.4 The Treasury Management function is administered by Compass Point Business Services    
on behalf of the Council.

Page 39

Agenda Item 7.



2.0 INTRODUCTION

2.1 This report summarises the following :-

 Capital activity during the year;
 Impact of this activity on the Council’s underlying indebtedness (the Capital 

Financing Requirement);
 The actual prudential and treasury indicators;
 Overall treasury position identifying how the Council has borrowed in relation to its 

indebtedness, and the impact on investment balances;
 Summary of interest rate movements in the year;
 Detailed debt activity; and
 Detailed investment activity.

3.0 THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING 2017/18 

3.1 The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets.  These activities may 
either be:

 financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources 
(capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant 
impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or

 if insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply resources, the 
capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.

3.2 The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators.  The 
following tables show the actual capital expenditure and how this was financed.

£’000 General Fund 2016/17
Actual

2017/18 
Estimate

2017/18
Actual

Capital expenditure 1,924 4,065 2,606

Financed in year (638) (2,357) (1,486)

Unfinanced capital expenditure 1,286 1,708 1,120

£’000 Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA)

2016/17
Actual

2017/18 
Estimate

2017/18
Actual

Capital expenditure 3,052 9,220 3,369

Financed in year (3,052) (9,220) (3,369)

Unfinanced capital expenditure - - -

Page 40



4.0 THE COUNCIL’S OVERALL BORROWING NEED

4.1 The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR).  This figure is a gauge of the Council’s indebtedness. The 
CFR results from the capital activity of the Council and resources used to pay for the 
capital spend.  It represents the 2017/18 unfinanced capital expenditure (see above 
table), and prior years’ net or unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been paid 
for by revenue or other resources.

4.2 Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address the funding requirements for this 
borrowing need.  Depending on the capital expenditure programme, the treasury service 
organises the Council’s cash position to ensure that sufficient cash is available to meet 
the capital plans and cash flow requirements.  This may be sourced through borrowing 
from external bodies (such as the Government, through the Public Works Loan Board 
(PWLB) or the money markets), or utilising temporary cash resources within the Council.

4.3 Reducing the CFR – the Council’s (non HRA) underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not 
allowed to rise indefinitely.  Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are 
broadly charged to revenue over the life of the asset.  The Council is required to make an 
annual revenue charge, called the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), to reduce the 
CFR.  This is effectively a repayment of the non-HRA borrowing need (there is no 
statutory requirement to reduce the HRA CFR). This differs from the treasury 
management arrangements which ensure that cash is available to meet capital 
commitments.  External debt can also be borrowed or repaid at any time, but this does not 
change the CFR.

The total CFR can also be reduced by:

 the application of additional capital financing resources (such as unapplied capital 
receipts); or 

 charging more than the statutory revenue charge (MRP) each year through a 
Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP).

4.4 The Council’s 2017/18 MRP Policy as required by Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government (MHCLG) guidance was approved as part of the Treasury 
Management Strategy Report for 2017/18 on 22/02/2017 and amended at Full Council on 
17/01/2018.

4.5 The Council’s CFR for the year is shown below, and represents a key prudential indicator:

CFR (£’000): General Fund
31 March 

2017 
Actual

31 March
 2018 

Budget

31 March
 2018 
Actual

Opening Balance 308 2,557 2,557

Add unfinanced capital expenditure 
(as above) 1,286 1,708 1,120

Add Transfer of Land & Buildings 
From HRA 963 - 170

Closing Balance 2,557 4,265 3,847

Page 41



CFR (£’000): HRA 31 March 
2017 

Actual

31 March
 2018 

Budget

31 March
 2018 
Actual

Opening Balance 69,584 68,609 68,609

Add unfinanced capital expenditure 
(as above) - - -

Less MRP/VRP and other financing 
movements (12) - -

Less Transfer of Land & Buildings to 
General Fund (963) - (170)

Closing Balance 68,609 68,609 68,439

Borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators for net borrowing and the CFR, 
and by the authorised limit.

4.6 Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over 
the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Council should ensure that its gross 
external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the 
preceding year (2016/17) plus the estimates of any additional CFR for the current 
(2017/18) and next two financial years.  This essentially means that the Council is not 
borrowing to support revenue expenditure.  This indicator allows the Council some 
flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital needs in 2017/18.  The table below 
highlights the Council’s gross borrowing position against the CFR.  The Council has 
complied with this prudential indicator.

31 March 2017 
Actual
(£’000)

31 March 2018 
Budget
(£’000)

31 March 2018 
Actual
(£’000)

Gross Borrowing Position 67,456 67,456 67,456

CFR 71,166 72,874 72,286

 
4.7 The authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” required by s3 of the Local 

Government Act 2003.  Once this has been set, the Council does not have the power to 
borrow above this level.  The following table demonstrates that during 2017/18 the Council 
has maintained gross borrowing within its authorised limit.

The operational boundary is the expected borrowing position of the Council during the 
year.  Periods where the actual position is either below or over the boundary is acceptable 
subject to the authorised limit not being breached.

Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator identifies the 
trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term obligation costs net of 
investment income) against the net revenue stream.

Page 42



2017/18
Authorised limit £90.456m
Maximum gross borrowing position £67.456m
Operational boundary £80.360m
Average gross borrowing position £67.456m
Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream – Non HRA
                                                                                          HRA

-1.53%
34.12%

5.0 TREASURY POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

5.1 The Council’s debt and investment position is organised by the treasury management 
service in order to ensure adequate liquidity for revenue and capital activities, security for 
investments and to manage risks within all treasury management activities. Procedures 
and controls to achieve these objectives are well established both through member 
reporting and through officer activity detailed in the Council’s Treasury Management 
Practices. At the beginning and the end of 2017/18 the Council’s treasury position 
including accrued interest was as follows:

31/3/17 
Amount

£’000

Rate/
Return

%

Average
Life

31/3/18 
Amount

£’000

Rate/
Return

%

Average
Life

Fixed rate funding
    PWLB
    Leases

67,456
-

3.48
n/a

45 years 67,456
-

3.48
n/a

44 years

Total debt 67,456 3.48 45 years 67,456 3.48 44 years

  CFR 71,166 72,286
  Over/(under) borrowing (3,710) (4,830)

Cash and investments:
  long term (927) n/a n/a (927) n/a n/a
  short term (29,290) 0.60 99 days (32,597) 0.76 155 days
  instant access deposits (4,908) 0.23 1 day (3,115) 0.46 1 day
Total cash and 
investments (35,125) 0.55 84 days (36,639) 0.73 141 days

Net debt 32,331 30,817

Page 43



5.2 Investments held at 31 March 2018 including accrued interest were as follows:

In addition to the above investments, the Council has issued two loans to Welland Homes 
which are classified as Long Term Debtors. The balance and details of these loans as at 
31 March 2018 are as follows:

Loan 1 - £1,341,642.80 @ 3.5% repayable on 17/03/47.

Loan 2 - £187,675.67 @ 5.5%. This is a development loan and once the development has 
been completed the rate reduces to 3.5% in accordance with the loan agreement.

5.3 As at 31 March 2018 the maturity structure of the investment portfolio was all under one 
year with the exception of the £50k equity stake in the UK Municipal Bonds Agency and 
the £2.4m combined equity stake in, and loans to Welland Homes Ltd.

  
5.4 All borrowing is at fixed rates and cash/investment holdings are split £33.5m fixed and 

£3.1m variable.  The whole of the borrowing is due for repayment on 28 March 2062.

6.0 THE STRATEGY FOR 2017/18

6.1 The expectation for interest rates within the treasury management strategy for 2017/18 
anticipated that Bank Rate would not start rising from 0.25% until quarter 2 2019 and then 
only increase once more before 31/03/20.  There would also be gradual rises in medium 
and longer term fixed borrowing rates during 2017/18 and the two subsequent financial 
years.  Variable, or short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper form of borrowing 

Financial Institution (Lowest long 
term rating in brackets)

Investment
 Type

Amount
£’000

Start 
Date

Maturity 
Date

Rate/
Return

%
 UK Municipal Bonds Agency Equity      50 n/a n/a n/a

 Welland Homes Ltd (N/A) Equity    877 n/a n/a n/a

 Svenska Handelsbanken (AA-) Instant Access    513 n/a n/a 0.43

 CCLA Money Market Fund (AAA) Money Market 
Fund 2,602 n/a n/a 0.46

 Royal Bank of Scotland (BBB+) Certificate of 
Deposit 5,034 13/04/17 13/04/18 0.70

 Qatar National Bank (A) Time Deposit 1,008 18/04/17 18/04/18 0.83

 Coventry Building Society (A) Time Deposit 4,009 03/11/17 03/05/18 0.54

 Telford & Wrekin Council (AA) Time Deposit 3,001 19/03/18 21/05/18 0.85

 First Abu Dhabi Bank (AA-) Time Deposit 5,025 01/06/17 01/06/18 0.60

 Lloyds Bank (A) Time Deposit 2,508 21/11/17 20/11/18 0.90

 London Borough of Enfield (AA) Time Deposit 5,006 02/02/18 01/02/19 0.78
 Oadby & Wigston Borough Council 
(AA)

Time Deposit 3,003 14/02/18 13/02/19 0.78

 Cambridgeshire County Council (AA) Time Deposit 4,003 28/02/18 27/02/19 1.00

 TOTAL 36,639

Page 44



over the period.  Continued uncertainty in the aftermath of the 2008 financial crisis 
promoted a cautious approach, whereby investments would continue to be dominated by 
low counterparty risk considerations, resulting in relatively low returns compared to 
borrowing rates.

6.2 In this scenario, the treasury strategy was to postpone borrowing to avoid the cost of 
holding higher levels of investments and to reduce counterparty risk.

6.3 During 2017/18, longer term PWLB rates were volatile but with little overall direction, 
whereas shorter term PWLB rates were on a rising trend during the second half of the 
year.

7.0 THE ECONOMY AND INTEREST RATES (commentary provided by Link Asset 
Services - external treasury advisors)

7.1 During the calendar year of 2017, there was a major shift in expectations in financial 
markets in terms of how soon Bank Rate would start on a rising trend.  After the UK 
economy surprised on the upside with strong growth in the second half of 2016, growth in 
2017 was disappointingly weak in the first half of the year which meant that growth was 
the slowest for the first half of any year since 2012. The main reason for this was the 
sharp increase in inflation caused by the devaluation of sterling after the European Union 
(EU) referendum, feeding increases into the cost of imports into the economy.  This 
caused a reduction in consumer disposable income and spending power as inflation 
exceeded average wage increases.  Consequently, the services sector of the economy, 
accounting for around 75% of Gross Domestic Product (GDP), saw weak growth as 
consumers responded by cutting back on their expenditure. However, growth did pick up 
modestly in the second half of 2017.  Consequently, market expectations during the 
autumn, rose significantly that the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) would be heading in 
the direction of imminently raising Bank Rate.  The minutes of the MPC meeting of 14 
September indicated that the MPC was likely to raise Bank Rate very soon.  The 2 
November MPC quarterly Inflation Report meeting duly delivered by raising Bank Rate 
from 0.25% to 0.50%.

The 8 February MPC meeting minutes then revealed another sharp hardening in MPC 
warnings on a more imminent and faster pace of increases in Bank Rate than had 
previously been expected. 

Market expectations for increases in Bank Rate, therefore, shifted considerably during the 
second half of 2017-18 and resulted in investment rates from 3 – 12 months increasing 
sharply during the spring quarter.

7.2 PWLB borrowing rates increased correspondingly to the above developments with the 
shorter term rates increasing more sharply than longer term rates.  In addition, UK gilts 
have moved in a relatively narrow band this year, (within 25 basis points for much of the 
year), compared to United States (US) treasuries. During the second half of the year, 
there was a noticeable trend in treasury yields being on a rising trend with the Fed raising 
rates by 0.25% in June, December and March, making six increases in all from the floor. 
The effect of these three increases was greater in shorter terms around 5 year, rather 
than longer term yields.

Page 45



8.0 BORROWING RATES IN 2017/18

8.1 PWLB certainty maturity borrowing rates - the following graph shows PWLB certainty 
maturity rates for a selection of maturity periods throughout the financial year.

9.0 BORROWING OUTTURN FOR 2017/18

9.1 Due to investment concerns, both counterparty risk and low investment returns, no new 
borrowing was undertaken during the year.

9.2 No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% differential between PWLB new 
borrowing rates and premature repayment rates made rescheduling unviable.

9.3 The table in paragraph 5.1 provides a summary of borrowing as at 31 March 2018.

10.0 INVESTMENT RATES IN 2017/18

10.1 Investment rates for 3 months and longer have been on a rising trend during the second 
half of the year in the expectation of Bank Rate increasing from its floor of 0.25%, and 
reached a peak at the end of March. Bank Rate was duly raised from 0.25% to 0.50% on 
02/11/17 and remained at that level for the rest of the year.  However, further increases 
are expected over the next few years. Deposit rates continued into the start of 2017/18 at 
previous depressed levels due, in part, to a large tranche of cheap financing being made 
available under the Term Funding Scheme to the banking sector by the Bank of England; 
this facility ended on 28/02/18.

Page 46



11.0 INVESTMENTS OUTTURN FOR 2017/18

11.1 Investments Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by the MHCLG 
guidance, which has been implemented in the annual investment strategy approved by 
the Council on 22 February 2017.  This policy sets out the approach for choosing 
investment counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit 
rating agencies supplemented by additional market data (such as rating outlooks, credit 
default swaps, bank share prices etc.).

11.2 The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, and the 
Council had no liquidity difficulties.

11.3 Resources - the Council’s cash balances comprise revenue and capital resources and 
cash flow monies.  The Council’s core cash resources comprised as follows:

Balance Sheet Resources (£’000) 31 March 2017 31 March 2018

Balances 11,182 15,062

Earmarked Reserves 8,543 7,819

Major Repairs Reserve 6,696 4,304

Capital Grants and Contributions 1,612 1,841

Usable capital receipts 3,572 6,435

Total 31,605 35,461

Page 47



11.4 Investments held by the Council - the Council maintained an average balance of £41.7m 
of internally managed funds.  The internally managed funds earned an average rate of 
return of 0.622%.  The comparable performance indicator is the average 3 Month London 
Interbank Bid rate, which was 0.286%.

11.5 Actual investment interest earned during 2017/18 was £259k against an original budget of 
£150k. The main reasons for the increase were higher than anticipated interest rates 
available in the market during the second half of the financial year and higher than 
anticipated levels of investment balances.

11.6 As mentioned in paragraph 5.2 the Council has now issued two loans totalling £1.529m to 
Welland Homes Limited, which is the Council’s wholly owned Housing Development 
Company. These are service loans and the Council receives interest of 3.5% and 5.5% on 
these loans which is payable on a quarterly basis. Total interest earned on these loans 
during the year was £41,124.

12.0 REVISED CIPFA CODES, MHCLG INVESTMENT GUIDANCE AND MHCLG MINIMUM 
REVENUE PROVISION GUIDANCE

12.1 In December 2017, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, (CIPFA), 
issued a revised Treasury Management Code and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes, and a 
revised Prudential Code. A particular focus of these revised codes was how to deal with 
local authority investments which are not treasury type investments e.g. by investing in 
purchasing property in order to generate income for the Authority at a much higher level 
than can be attained by treasury investments.  One recommendation was that local 
authorities should produce a new report to members to give a high level summary of the 
overall capital strategy and to enable members to see how the cash resources of the 
Authority have been apportioned between treasury and non-treasury investments. 

12.2 CIPFA accepts that the issue of revised codes in December 2017 will have made it very 
difficult for authorities to implement both codes for the 2018/19 budget cycle.  Full 
implementation is not expected until the 2019/20 budget cycle across all authorities. 

12.3 Revised MHCLG investment guidance was issued on 02/02/18. This focused particularly 
on non-financial asset investments.  The effective definition of a short-term investment as 
being repayable ‘within 12 months’ in the 2010 investment guidance, has been removed 
from the 2018 guidance.  A long term investment is now therefore one in excess of 365 
days.

12.4 The MHCLG MRP guidance was issued on 02/02/18. This has focused particularly on 
expenditure on purchasing non-financial asset investments.  There are also changes to 
guidance on retrospective changes to MRP policy.

13.0 MARKETS IN FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DIRECTIVE II (MiFID II)

13.1 The EU set the date of 3 January 2018 for the introduction of regulations under MIFID II.  
These regulations govern the relationship that financial institutions conducting lending and 
borrowing transactions will have with local authorities from that date.  This has had little 
effect on this Authority apart from having to fill in forms sent by each institution dealing 
with this Authority and for each type of investment instrument we use, apart from for cash 
deposits with banks and building societies.

14.0 OPTIONS

14.1 There are no alternative options presented.

Page 48



15.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

15.1 To comply with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management 2017.

16.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

16.1 The report provides Members with a summary of the economy, the effect it has had on 
financial markets and the treasury activity during 2017/18. The report requires scrutiny 
prior to submitting to Council for approval.

17.0 IMPLICATIONS

17.1 Constitution & Legal

17.1.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 
produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2017/18. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance in Local Authorities.

17.1.2 The Council’s financial strategy, capital financing and borrowing all form part of the Policy 
Framework and are therefore non-executive matters that fall within the remit of the full 
Council.

17.2 Financial 

17.2.1 The report provides details of the treasury activity for the 2017/18 financial year to inform 
members on performance and to highlight any changes in the year.

17.2.2 Total interest received was £259k with £173k to the General Fund and £86k to the 
Housing Revenue Account. 

17.3 Risk Management 

17.3.1 The Council’s investment policy has regard to the MHCLG Guidance on Local 
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the revised CIPFA Treasury Management 
in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM 
Code”). The Council’s investment priorities are security first, liquidity second, then return.

18.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

18.1   Due to budgetary considerations all wards are affected.

19.0   ACRONYMS 

19.1 CPBS – Compass Point Business Services
19.2 CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
19.3 HRA – Housing Revenue Account
19.4 CFR – Capital Financing Requirement
19.5 PWLB – Public Works Loan Board
19.6 MRP – Minimum Revenue Provision
19.7 VRP – Voluntary Revenue Provision
19.8 MHCLG – Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government

Page 49



19.9 EU – European Union
19.10 GDP – Gross Domestic Product
19.11 MPC – Monetary Policy Committee
19.12 US – United States
19.13 MiFID – Markets in Financial Instruments Directive

Background papers: - SHDC Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2017/18

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Sean Howsam – Finance Manager Treasury (CPBS)
Telephone Number: 01507 613248
Email: sean.howsam@cpbs.com

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report:  None

Page 50



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) – Mark Stinson

To: Governance and Audit Committee - Thursday, 24 May 2018 

(Author: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer)

Subject Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee

Recommendation:

That the Committee gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any issues for 
discussion.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 
Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer.

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-
yearly or quarterly.

1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 
some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings.

1.4 Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  It lays out all meetings for the 2018/19 municipal year. Alongside each of 
these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis together 
with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the frequency 
with which it is considered.
 

1.5 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 
Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the 
Committee in a clear, structured and organised way.

1.6 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad hoc 
issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be covered at a 
future meeting, and any one-off issues. 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 

2.2 To do nothing.

Page 51

Agenda Item 8.



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to 
ensure that it stays relevant and up to date.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a 
clear, structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 
author, there are none arising out of this report.   However, the Work Programme should 
assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 
line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution.

5.2 Risk Management 

5.2.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 
there are none.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to 
monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate 
governance in the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of risk 
issues.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this post.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer
Telephone Number 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee

Page 52



APPENDIX A

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2018/19

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

24 May 2018 Progress Report and Technical Update External Audit
(KPMG)

To update the Committee on progress 
with the external audit

Twice a year

Pre-Audit 2017-18 Financial Statements, 
including narrative report

Section 151 Officer To approve financial statements prior 
to release to External Audit
Mandatory

Annual

Draft Annual Governance Statement 
2017-18 (appendix to the Pre-Audit 2017-
18 Financial Statements report)

Section 151 Officer Approval
Mandatory

Annual

Annual Treasury Management Review Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy
Mandatory

Annual

Q4 Risk Report Charlotte Paine Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

26 July 2018 ISA 260 Report 17/18 (previously known 
as Annual Governance report)

External Audit
(KPMG)

Mandatory report to those charged 
with Governance

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2017-18
(to include information that would have 
been reported to May 2018 meeting)

Internal Audit 
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

P
age 53



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations

Internal Audit Twice a year

Annual Report and Opinion (report on the 
past year) 2017-18

Internal Audit Internal Audit opinion to support draft 
Annual Governance Statement
Mandatory

Annual

Q1 18-19 Risk Report Charlotte Paine Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

Approval of Annual Governance 
Statement, for inclusion with the 
Council’s published financial statements, 
and approval of the audited 17/18 
financial statements

Section 151 Officer Mandatory – approval required Annual

18 October 2018 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2017/18 External Audit
(KPMG)

Mandatory/Consultation requirement
To approve audit fees

Annually

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2018-19

Internal Audit 
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment

Internal Audit For confirmation.
Good practice.

Annual

Mid Term Treasury Report 18/19 Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy, reporting 
requirements

Half Yearly

Q2 2018-19 Risk Report Charlotte Paine Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

P
age 54



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

17 January 2019 Grant Claims 2017/18 External Audit
(KPMG)

External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval

Annual

Progress Report and Technical Update External Audit
(Ernst &  Young)

To update the Committee on progress 
with the external audit

Twice a year

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2018-19

Internal Audit 
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations

Internal Audit Twice a year

Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 19/20

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement
To review Treasury Management 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators

Annual

14 March 2019 Audit Plan External Audit
(Ernst & Young)

External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2018-19

Internal Audit 
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 
2019/20

Internal Audit
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

Annual Internal Audit Workplan -
Mandatory approval

Annual

P
age 55



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Audit Mandatory Inquiries Section 151 Officer To confirm the response of the 
external audit mandatory inquiries. 
External auditors are required to 
obtain an understanding on how those 
charged with governance exercise 
oversight of management’s processes 
in relation to fraud, laws and 
regulations and going concerns.
Good Practice

Annual

Q3 2018-19 Risk Report Charlotte Paine Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

Item to be added twice yearly to Work Programme in December and June (as part of the year end reporting) – Update on the progress of 
agreed audit recommendations and whether management have implemented these as expected.  Report from Internal Audit. 

The following items to be added to the Committee’s Work Programme on an ad hoc basis, where there is information to report:

 Follow up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations - The Head of Internal Audit to identify internal audit recommendations not yet 
actioned and that where there are concerns, relevant officers to be identified to attend the next meeting of the Governance and Audit 
Committee to explain delay.

 The Head of Internal Audit to present a performance report detailing levels and types of fraud.  

P
age 56


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	4. Quarter 4 Risk Report
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 4 Risk Report

	5. External Audit Progress Report and Technical Update
	7. Annual Treasury Management Review 2017/18
	8. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Appendix 1


